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THE LORD'S TAVERNERS LIMITED

President’s Introduction

I would like to begin by saying how proud | have been, particularly in the last vear. 1o be both President and
a supporter of the Taverners. We have emerged stronger from the pandemic with frue recognition of the
impact our programmes have on our participants and of how important those programmes have been,
particularly in lockdown,

We have seen sighificant changes at the Tavermers. | would like to extend awarm welcome te Mark Curtin as
CEO, who has brought new impetus to the organisation with @ focus of placing our participants al the centre
of every decision we make, while retaining those characteristics that make the Tavarners a unique charity. |
would also very much lke to thank Paul Rokin, who left us after eight succeassful years with the Charity, for his
commitment as CEQ.

Against the backdrop of the last eighteen months, what has stood out is the degree of diversity and inclusion
that our programmes offer. Wicketz sets out to bring together young people from challenging circumstances
for weekly cricket coaching. Cnce together the young people share experiences from their own diverse
backgrounds, build friendships across communities, and develop confidence and life skills to help them move
forward.

With the strength of the ECB and Sport England alongside the Berkeley Foundadion, Super 1s has brought
together young people with a disability to play cricket. Gaining a social life, friendships and being part of
communitias is harder for these young people and mairtaining engagement digitally when they could not
gef together was incredibly imporant to each of them.

Our focus on diversity and Inclusion has been evidenced by some of our Wicketz and Super 1s groups joining
up from time to time, understonding their different challenges, understanding their commonalities, and seeing
the world through the eyes of others.

As a Taverner It has been fantastic to see our events up and running again - allowing us to meet many of our
supporters face to face after o lkeng abksence. Although the Tavemers is now broader, with key strategic
partnerships with foundations, companies, governing bodies and statutory funders. events remain an
important part of the ethos of the Charity that was started back in 1950 - getting together, having fun and
raising funds 1o help young people.

Reflecting on the 70 years of history, the last year was overshadowed by the passing of our Founding Patron
and Twelfth Man, HRH Prince Philip KG GT. A keen ciicketer and cricket fan, he had been with us since our
very beginnings and he had been a cormnerstone of the charity. We remain etermnally grateful to him for his
support throughout that period and we wish his family well.

Tim Luckhurst has taken the opporiunity 1o intreduce the new Stralegy for the Chdrity within the Trustees Report,
Building on the reputation and qudlity of the work we have delivered through cricket o empower young
people from chalenging circumstances, this is the start of a new and exciling era for the Taverners.

On behalf of all the participants in our programmes, past, present and future, | would like 16 say thank you to

all of the volunteers, supporters, Members, tnustees, regional fundraisers, and staff fer the commitment you
demonstrate day in and day out to the charity.

:‘_\CLE& A~ 1
David Gower OBE

President
Lord’s Taverners
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Report of the Trustees {incorporating the Report of the Directors)
for the year ended 30 September 2021

Qur Values

Togetherness - we deliver fellowship through our regions and partnerships in the provision of our activities.

Accountablility - we are all accountable for ensuring that the Lord's Taverners is fit for purpose and remains
0.

Diversity — we seek to create an organisation that reflects the diverse nature of our society and our
participants.

Social Impact - We seek to make a difference fo disadvantaged and disabled young people and we
measure the impact that cur programmes have to signpost how we best allocate our funds.

Who we are

Cur Purpose:
We exist to empower and pesitively impact the lives of young people facing the challenges of inequadility.
Our Vision:
Every young person can overcome the challenges of inequality and achieve their potential.

Our Mission:

To maximise the use of the sport of Crickel to empower young people facing inequality 1o make positive
choices, improve their mental health and wellbeing and achieve positive cutcomes.

What we do:

We are a community of people and organisations that collaborate to provide innovative, inclusive, and
impactful Cricket programmaes, empaowaering the young people with disabilities and those from
disadvantaged communities to develop their knowledge. skills, capabilities, and confidence required to
overcome the chalenges of inequality, raise their aspirations and reach their potential.

Driven by a passion for equality, we strive to be alead organisation at the heart of social change;
maximising our knowledge, experience and insight gained through our work with young people and their
communities experiencing inequality, We will collaborate and become a credible, expert voice and
influencer, shaping attitudes, thinking and approaches fo unite communities in the drive to overcome
inequalities.
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Report of the Trustees (incorporating the Report of the Directors)
for the year ended 30 September 2021

Our Programmes suppert some of the mest marginalised and at-risk young people through sport and

recreation.

We create o range of opportunities for young people from deprived areas and those with disabilities to
engage in sport and recreational activities in their locdl communities.

Our Quicomes

¢ Increase opportunitias for regular participation

¢ Improve health, mental well-being ond future prospects of participants

¢ Strengthen community and social cohesion

e Develop anetwork of volurdeers, coaches and role models.
Supporting Our Outcomes

Qur outcomes are underpinned by core themes that we seek 1o develop within each of our programmes:

Skills for Life

While programme delivery is at the core of our aclivity, we are seeking tc nurture an active
lifestyla, responsibility, self-esteern, confidence, resilience and more. Qur aim is to equip young
people with the skills they need to succeed in their lives and their communily. This includes the
ability to deal with their own challenges, to think for themselves, to mentor and influence, and fo
make healthy life choices. This we support through a range of workshops That form a core part of
our programme delivery.

Being part of something posifive

Exclusion and isolation are significant issues for many of the young people on our programmes.
We want our participants to feel that they have an opponunity 1o succeed, that their voices
matter and that they are included in something bigger than themselves. Qur programmes draw
people info group activities with others experiencing similar issues, fostering an attitude of tackling
problems together and supporting others in their peer groups.

Communication, Teamwork and Leadership

Building social skills is vital for our participants as many have limited opportunity to develop these
elsewhere. All our pregrammes are designed to support young people to develop their
communication skills, learm about teamwork, promote good leadership skills and build positive
relationships which can provide stability and security.

Volunteering and Community banefit

Cur work is community focused - delivering grassroots programmes tackling local issues, We want
our participants to feel safe and welcome in the places they live, but we also want them to take
pride in where they are from and to want to give back to their community, acting as role models
and leaders. We also want our coaches and volunieers 1o feel connected to their programmes
and invested in their success.

The Charity Sector continues 1o evolve in order to maintain, as well as build, public trust at a time when there
is an increasing demand on our charitable support from society more widely. The last couple of years have
highlighted many of the issues faced by young people from deprived backgrounds, and those who have a
disabllity, and it is the aim of the Taverners to expand the support that we can provide to pardicipants from
thase communities.
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Report of the Trustees [incorporating the Report of the Directors)
for the year ended 30 Sepitember 2021

The Need

The Taverners seek to empower young people who dare curenily considered to be either disadvantaged or
have o disability. We are one of many different charities who use different approaches to engage with young
people. We use cricket,

Within the UK
+ 1.5 milion young people in England, aged between 5 gnd 24 years old, have a disability;

= 25% of disabled young people ook part in an organised activity session in the last year, compared
with 36% of non-disabled peopls;

= 350,000 young people are living in the lowest 20 areas of socio-economic disadvantage:
+ Child poverty in the UK affects some 4 million children;

« There are over 130,000 refugees in the UK, of which over 3,000 are unaccompanied children, and
growing.

+ Disabled young pecple aged between 16 and 18 are twice as lkely as those without a disobility, to
not be in education, employment or iraining;

» 77% of disabled young people repoert fealing lonely on any given day:

e 2020 saw o &% increase in knife crimes in England and Wales to over 44,000.

Our Impact

Despite Covid, 10,872 participants took part in our cricket programmes during the year to September 2021,
engaging with thousands of individual coaching sessions across the UK. As a result of this our participants told
us. despite the lockdowns, that as a result of their participation in our programmes including digitally:

s 89% of them feel better about themselves;
e 88% felt more independent;

¢+ 84% felt more optimistic about the future;
s 93% felt more included:;

+  81% had made new friends;

s 85% now felt more independent.

Covid

Throughout the Trustees Repart we refer to the impact of Covid in particular areas. In summary our Covid
deficit is over the next twelve months, During the last two years:

¢«  Oureventincome fell away by in excess of £1 million each year,

+«  Our programmes went online, which combined with a slowdown in minibuses saved a similar amount

» Our team contracted for a variety of reasons, pardicularty around fundraising, and we tock the
decision not to recruit until the outlook became clearer.

We are now investing again in building that fundrasing capacilty, however we recognise it will take time io
see areturn on that investment.
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Qur Programmes

At the Lord's Taverners we facilitate the development and delivery of quality cricket programmes for the
benefit of young people across the country. Our focus is to desian and manage pregrammes for young people
who face inequdlity. We specifically seek 1o engage and empower young pecple from communities where
a range of social and economic, as well as personal, challenges present barriers and lack of opportunity. Qur
work predominantly focuses on providing Cricket programmes as a means to engage and empower young
people with physical and / or learning disabilities up to the age of 25.

We manage and evaluate our programmes so that we con continudlly improve their effectiveness, enhonce
their impact for our paricipants, and to ensure that their expansion is based on need and evidence. This
process is undertaken in-house and is supported by recognised charity research agencies to ensure we
maintain a strategic framework to our programmes.

We dlso manage a raonge of grant-based programmes focused primarily on the provision of transport and
suppert for junior sports develepment to enable disabled young people to have increased opportunity o
parficipale in sport and recreation. With an increasing focus on the growing demand placed upon us for our
core programmes, we are planning to review our grant-based programmes for transport and other cash or
asset donations ang assess where we are most impactful and where all of our stakeholders con be certain
that we are moving towards the most (social) return on our investment.

Cricket Programmes

Qur cricket programmes are predominantly parinerships, bringing together County Cricket Boards, local
community groups, workshop providers, and others to best satisfy local needs. This enables us, for example, to
harness local knowledge ot a granular level in bringing participants to the programme. Equally important, our
delivery structure with the Counties ensures that the development officers and coaches involved can, where
cppropriate, benefit from the ECB's extensive safeguarding policies and training of development officers and
coaches to best protect the young people we support.

The main cricket programmes are;
Super 1s, focusing on young people who may have physical and/or learning disabilities

Table Cricket, G version of cricket designed for young people who use wheelchairs, but is played by
young people with both physical and leaming disabilities;

Wicketz, focusing on young people from communities facing ineguality

Kit Recycling, collecting and redistributing kit in the UK and arcund the world to enable young pecple
te play sport



THE LORD'S TAVERNERS LIMITED

Report of the Trustees (incorporating the Report of the Directors)

for the year ended 30 September 2021

Sljl)er Focused on young 2020-21
»
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What is Super 157

Super 15 gives young people with a disability aged 12 -
25 the chance to play reguiar, competitive cricket. By
creating community cricket hubs where young pecple
can receive coaching, we give participants the chance
to compete against their peers and enjoy the benefits of
playing sport.

The competition provided by Super 15 gives participants
a recl sense of achievement. with many of the county
and regional finals being held at iconic cricketing venues
including Edgbaston, Emirates Old Trafford and Lord's,

people with a disability 790 participants

23% Female participation
How Super 1s helps young people

For many young people with a disability, loneliness
has been identified as a major issue, and
opportunities to take part in regular competitive
sport can be extremely limited. Super 15 provides
these opportunities and helps young people
rediise their potential. it improves their physical
and mental wellbeing, giving a sense of
belonging as the make friends and gain skills for
life such as confidence and independsence.

Many of the young people who have engaged in
the programme now act as role models for the
next group of participants, whether as a player,
coach or a volunteer. This is ¢ crucial element of
the programme, as it empowers the young people
to redlise what they can achieve.

Super 1s Locations

"Super 13 is not only abouf access {o sport, although
of course that is important. Super 15 is also helping
young people develop imporitant life skifls, like
confidence. self-esteem, and ieadership. I also builds
friendships, and reduces isolation. We know that sport
has an amazing power to bring people together. At the
Barkeley Foundation we are really proud to be working
with such a dedicated. ambitious group of partners.

fn March 2020, Covid-19 stopped play across the
country, and the vital support that Super 1s bifngs fo
young pecople could have disappeared. The Lord's
Tavemers and afl the local County Crickef Boards
worked hard to adapt so that the young peaple cotid
come together online. There s no substitute for playing
together in real life. but the team did an incredibie job
in keeping the whole Lord’'s Tavemers family
connected. During lockdowns and isolation this digital
commuity was a real lifeline.

The Super 1s progranwme is a greal example of
partnersiin working. By trusting each other and
coming logelher, we have crealed something that has
areal impact. Looking back at the last seven years if's
amazing o see how far it's come.”

Berkeley Foundation, Financial partners of the

Supers 1s Programme
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The geographic range shown above continues to expand thonks to the valuable support of Berkeley
Foundation, the England and Wales Cricket Board and Sport England.

Cur game changing partnership with the England and Wales Cricket Board (ECB) will see Super 15 launched
in every county and help develop a more sustainable table cricket offer - increasing participation, inspiring
social change and empowering tens of thousands more young people to tulfil their potential and build life
skills through the sport. The collaboration will see both Super 15 and Table Cricket active in all 39 counties by
the end of 2024,

Nick Pryde, Director of Participation and Growth at ECB: “We're commitfed to making cricket as inclusive and
diverse as possible and this partnership will be a big driving force towards thot. Bringing Super 1s to every
county really will change lives. 1f's a fantastic way to increase accessibility and show that cricket can be a
game for everyone.”

How Covid has impacted Super 1s

2019 saw our first Super Is residential which included workshops on heaithy eating, nutrition, and employability,
but more imporiantly instiled confidence. social skils and independence in many of the participants.
Residentials — an important part of the development of Super 1s - did not take place in 2020 and 2021, and
we are planning for these to be reinstated ond expanded in 2022.

The creation of the Super 15 Online Hule enabled many of our participants te remain active in thelr homes with
their families and helped thelr mental wellbeing. This Hub was supported by regular Zoom meetings of
beneficiary groups. A new task or challenge would be set each wesk — often by members of the England
disability cricket squad as well as individuals such as Dom Bess and Dan Norcross. The hubs also provided
advice on how best to keep body and mind active and information for parents and participants on how to
access addifional support.

2020-21

LoRrD’s TAVERNERS %.

TABLE CRICKET %

What is Table Cricket?

Table cricket is an adapted version of cricket, played
on d table fennis table and specially designed to
give young disabled people the chonce to play and
compete.

The game is strategic, with different scoring zones
around the table and, just like in regular cricket,
fielders have to be carefully positioned to prevent
runs or 1o get the batter out.

Teams of six take it in turn to bowl or bat, with the
powler using a ramp to deliver the ball {either o
regular ball thol runs true or a weighted one that
swings around). The batter scores by hitting the ball
inte the scoring zones, avoiding the fielders if they
can,

Regional competitions nomally lead to the National
Finals at Lord's providing < significant personal
sporting goal for young people who may have felt
such opportunities were not available.

7.957 participants

How Table Cricket helps young people

Alongside the enjoyment of playing the game and
competing, table cricket has been shown 1o
develop teamwork and social skills among players.
Italso helps coordingtion angd  cognitive  skills
together with, due to the nature of cricket,
arithmetic skills.

The game is played by young people with both
learning and physical disobilities. It enables young
pecple to understand tactics, draw the best out of
team players ond 10 build a social life. It is
particularly  important  for those who uwse o
wheelchair where local sporting opportunities are
limited.

For the young volunteers involved in coaching and
umpiring, toble cricket helps to develop self-
confidence and enhances their future employment
prospects,
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The Table Cricket Journey

Table cricket is delivered primarily in schools across the UK, While it is played by young people with learning
disabilities as well as physical disabilities, we have recognised that it is one of the faew available options for the
latter group of young people who cre often unable fo fake part in other sports designed for ambulant
individuals, It has also been adopted by our sister chariities in Ireland and South Africa,

In early 20192 we embarked on a major redesign of the table cricket equipment with the key aims of:

Ensuring greater robustness;

An improved appearance which would appedl 1o young people in the 218 century;
Having a "product” that would appeal both within ond outside the schools envirenment;
An affordable price peint for schools and others to engage with the sport.

We have been working with Robert Gordon University on the design and development of this and we were
delighted to see working prototypes of the new kit being showcased at the Super 15 Awards evening in October
2021. The kit is now being adjusted and will have rigorous testing with a selection of schools and we are now
planning to launch the new kit for the new scheool year starting Autumn 2022,

How Covld has Impacted Table Cricket

Covid hos had a significant impact on the programme., Table Cricket typically is played in schools and is
generally organised between two teams of é players. Inevitably participation has therefore been limited by the
creation of “year" bubbles within the schools, and by the restiictions on group sizes. In addition, the pressures
on teachers to maintain their curiculum-based activities have limited the time available for activities such as
Table Cricket. As well as these limitations, the national competitions — a highlight of the year for participants -
unfortunately had to be cancelied for 2021. We were delighted to be able to run a number of regional
competition days and it is clear that there remains a strong interest in Table Cricket.

As with our other cricket programmes we created on-line hubs which have provided weekly drills and exercises
to enable young people te engage with Table Cricket in & home ervironment.

As noted above Covid meant significant delays in the design ond creation of the next generation of table
crickel kit. In paricular, air management issues prevented the 3d printing of samples to be tested and the
inability to visit schocls meant that prototype testing was significantly delayed.

2020-21
1,925 participants
17% female participation

Focused on
disadvantaged
young people

WICKETZ

What is Wicketz?

Wicketz is a cricket programme for young people
aged 8 — 19, living in challenging communities. By
establishing sustanable community hubs, we
provide yearround weekly cricket sessions with @
focus on breaking down barriers, developing
crucial skills, creating stronger communities and
enabling brighter futures for those taking part.

Each Wicketz project hos a  dedicated
development officer responsible for the running of
multiple local hubs within the areq. They work
closely with the young people thol come clong to
the sessions, many of whom are from hard-to-reach
groups, including young oftenders, refugees and
excluded pupils,

How Wicketz helps young people

Through cricket, Wicketz aims to tackle local
issues  offecting  young people and their
communities. Alongside cricket coaching and
games, the young people taking part have the
choice to learn from role models, community
leaders, local authorities and other. Specially
designed workshops also boost well-being, social
education, community awareness, promote
positive life choice and develop new life skills,
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How Covid impacted Wicketz

The Charity, wotking closely with the County Cricket Boards and the local development officers, replaced
weekly delivery sessions with a series of exercises, challenges and tasks through the Online Wicketz Hub. This
has enabled, through weekly targets, many of our parficipants to remain active in their homes with their
families and helped their physical and mental well-being. This was supported in many areas by regular Zoom

meetings for participant groups.

In addition, we provided competitions and other regular engagement with paricipants as the lockdown
extended, and it was nof unlil May 2021 that we saw a move back towards delivering meaningful sessions on

a weekly basis in real fife.

Wicketz locations

L3

Edinburgh

o
Horlepal

;
Manchaiter Brodferd
S g

Mol o
ingham,
Lelcapier

Peterbaraugh
Q52 IO
Midlond.
i L i P

Q

Weat Ham/! 9
L
Brsial R

Q-

5

“Over the last 2 years Spint has supparted Lord's
Tavemers aid Cricket Scotfand ihwough the
Wickelz prograrmme in Glasgow.  Wickefz
Glasgow brought diverse, and at risk, young
people from disadvantaged areas of the cily
fogether o develop and leam through crickel. They
suppoited young people to leam new skills, make
healthier choices and become. and stay, active,

We were] fortunate enough fo visit a session in
aclion one evening. A lypical Glasgow evening
with the rain bowuncing off the ground but still
around a dozen young people made it ouf that
night. That in itself is lelling and indicates what
Wickelz means to those young people. Wickelz
inspires! When it's pui in the hands of inspinng
feaders then we see fransformational change and
that's what happened in Wicketz Glasgow.

When those young people needed Wickelz most —
fike during a global pandemic, the programme
stepped up and responded to the crisis. We
funded the Wicketz programme in Glasgow lo
change lives, and that's what it did. Thank you and
good tuck for the fulure.”

Spirit of 2012, financial supporters of Wickelz,
Glasgow
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Workshops

Within our Super 1s and Wicketz programmes we refer to the use of workshops. Here are some examples of
just some of the 265 workshops we have delivered in the past two years to develop the thinking, aspirations

and prospects of our participants.

Cyberbullying and online safely

Personal aspirations and youth voice
Ermnployability skills

Team skills, leadership and mentering
Safety (fire, rail, water, sun)

Menial health awareness

First aid

Environmental

& & & 0 b & 0 b b e B

ﬁ Sports Kit Recycling

What is Kit recyc¢ling?

Many young people in the UK and abroad find it
hard to access sport, with one of the main barriers
being a simple lack of access to the right kit and
equipment,

Our sports kit recycling programme collects usable
kit from across the UK through a network of local
‘collection hubs', often located ot County Cricket
grounds, from where it is transferred to our main
warehouse nedr lpswich,

The kit is then sorted and redistributed to partner
organisations within the UK and around the world,
who can put it to great use in their communities.

Crime avoidance {e.q. drugs, gangs. knife crime)

Healthy lifestyle {e.g. diet, nutrition, exercise, self-care)
Cultural identity and chalenging sterectypes

2020-21
Over 13,000 items of kit delivered [3.87 tonnes)
to 7 countries

How recycled kit helps young people

The benefits of playing cricket ond other sports are
numerous. Having the cotrect kit gives more young
people the opportunity to play sport ond develop
crucial life skills such as teamwork, communication and
confidence, alongside improving their overall health
and wellbeing.

In recent years, we have sent lorge amounts of kit 1o
projects throughout the world including India. Germany.,
Anfigua, Brazil, Romania, Rwonda, Uganda, The
Gambia, and Mexico, as well as ocross the UK.

The Kit Recycling Jowrney

Prior to the impact of Covid in 2020, the Kit recycling programme had continued to grow and in January 2020
the programme moved into new premises in Ipswich, with a larger floor space, better ventilation, and with a
goods in and ¢ goods out area. This has made the organisation of receiving, sorting and dispatching kit far
more efficient. We continue to receive applications from around the world, and the deliveries are continuing

with our partners.

11
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How Covid has impacted Kit recycling

We have continued to deliver recycled kit, albeit at areduced level, to countries around the world and have
also been able to use some of the lockdown period 1o organise the new warehouse to meet our needs.

The main impact for us has been local collections. While we continue to have fadilities for members of the
public {and local clubs) to deposit kit at county grounds and other local collection points, the current situation
has meant that we have not been able to gain access to those points to bring that kit te our warehouse. This
hos slowed the flow of kit and clearing the local collection points is a key priorty for the first part of 2022.

Grants

Alongside our cricket programmes the Lord's Taverners support other organisations through grants, where
aims are similar or complement those of the Charity.

Spors Related Grants

Registered as a charity In its own right, the Johnners Trust supports the development of
young visually impaired ("V!"] cricketers through an annual development toumament
each year and close working relationships with Blind Cricket England and Wales and
the ECBin developing a girls' Vi cricket programme. Due to the impact of Covid, these
development festivals were not able to happen in 2021; however the Trust remaing
committed 1o this area of cricket development. It also continues to support the
development of aspiring young cricketers through awarding scholarships to support
talented young players at county academies and university, This has helped to
produce cricketers now playing at county and international level. While coaching has
been scaled back, the families of the young people concemed have had additional
hardships during 2021 and the scholar scheme has recognised this.

Fields in Trust has been a partner of the Lord's Taverners since the Charity
waqs first founded In 19250, Their aim of protecting parks and green spaces
that are under threat stems from a belief that everyone, irespective of
who they are and where they live, should have the right to enjoy and
benefit from local parks and green spaces.

Parks and green spaces are proven 1o help people stay physically and
mentally well. They are an important tool te drive secial cohesion, combat
lorneliness and build community spirit. The Charity is proud to have entered
info a five-year enhanced partnershin with Fields in Trust for the
development ana preservation of green spaces, particularly in areas that
complement our Wicketz activities.

12
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There is a distinct lack of opportunity for young people with

disohilities to access sporting activities outside of the school

environment, This is because of the difficulties they have in initially

identifying suitable sporting opportunities and then subseguenily

accessing venues due to location, unavailability of suitable ,

transport, lack of parental / carer engagement, cost and access i e
to equipment. This is more prevalent in areas of higher (

deprivation, GBWQ

We therefore offer clubs and young individuals financial support
to purchase sports wheelchairs, allowing regular play, training and
competiition.

S~
As a result of our partnerships with both Wheelchair Rugby and ‘ éa
Basketball Scotland (in terms of their wheelchair basketball N

activity) more clubs have octive junior seclions, more young

people are able to locally access wheelchair and disability sports, basketballscotland
and many young players are fitter, have improved social and
communication skills as well as self-confidence, and have that
natural outlet that sport provides to young pecple.

Minibuses

For many young people the ability 1o be fransported out of their normal environments enables them to live
more independeni, enjoyable and fulfilled lives. For a few it can mean work, and for many it leads to
improvemenis in physical, mental and emoetional health. For those with severe disabilities this has helped
development of coordination and communication, calmed anxieties and allowed them the confidence to
participate, interact and make their own choices,

Lack of accessible transport and play equipment continues to be an issue for
Special Educationat Needs (SEN) schools and organisations.

Due to low levels of fundraising we were not able to commit to minibuses in
2021, however during the year {subject to the availahilty of vehicles) we
fulfiled 14 minibuses that had been approved and committed in 2020,

We are conscious of the ongoing environmental debates and are working
with our suppliers as to when suitable eleciric vehicles would be commercially
available. We also anticipate that significant delays to supply due to covid
and other global supply chain issues including the conflict in Europe, may also
impact our ability to continue this work in the short to medium term.
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About the Lord’'s Taverners

In 1950, o group of entertainers and their friends met in the Tavern at Lord's 1o talk cricket and also to work out
how they would be able to put something back into the game they loved and help “fess fortunate young
people”. Thus, the Lord's Taverners was born and it was not long before they were organising their first events,
bringing together members with the common purpese of raising funds.

The Lord's Tavemers registered as a company in 1957 and, following the infroduction of the Charities Act in
1960, the company registered as a Charity in 1944, The cobjects for which the Charity is established are to
promole amateur sport, in particular, but not limited to, cricket, and o provide {in the interests of social
welfare} or to assist in the provision of recreaticnal facilities for persons who are in conditions of need or
hardship by reason of youth, age., disablement, social or economic circumsiance.

We confinue to work alengside our sister charities in Ireland, Australia, and South Africa - all independent
charities in their own right with similar aims and culture to ourselves.

We were deeply saddenecd by the passing of our Founding Pairon, HRH The Prince Phillip. Qur thoughts are
with his family as always. HRRE The Prince Phillip had been Patron and Twelfth Man since our inception. His
continued support and encouragement for the Taverners was hugely valued, as is the support of the team ot
Buckingham Palace. He will be sadly missed.

Cur thanks go alse to our President, David Gower OBE, who continues to embrace the Chatity with a great
passion and has been a great supporter over the last year and we would like to thank him for his support to
date, both at events, in visiting some of our charitable programmes at work, and for his interest in the day-to-
day activities of the organisation.

Fundraising
Our aftitude to fundraising

The charity undertakes fundraising activity with Members and supporters via fundraising events, appeals,
challenge events, and through subscriptions and donations in line with the Fundraising Code of Practice set
by the Fundraising Regulator.

In terms of our approach to fundraising we recognise the trust that exists between the organisation and its
supporters and as such they can be sure that:

we would never pass on contact details without express consent;

we would only contact individuals who have expressed an interest in our work;

we do not engage in cold-caling;

when reguested to change how we communicate with individuals, we will respect that request;
we endeavour to ensure that no one ever feels pressurised to supporl our work;

we are registered with the Fundraising Regulator and with the Fundraising Preference Service and
adhere 1o the Fundraising Code of Practice;

» we consider that all our activities are open, fair, honest and legal.

We underiake regular training updates for all our fundraising staff to reinforce our fundraising ethics. We have
not received any complaints in the last twelve months in relaticn to our fundraising practices. We continue to
monitor data management closely and, while our procedures set out the day-to-day tasks, the overriding
principle of treating personal data with care and raspect remains paramount,

How do we normally fundraise?

The Lord's Taverners benefit from hoving a variety of sources of fundraising. many of which reflect the heritage
of retfaining the "Fun” in fundraising, while at the sams time seeking 1o expand our supporier and Member
base. For example, in a normal year close to 10,000 people would normally attend Christmas events organised
by the Taverners across the UK each year.
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2021 saw the bringing together of all of our Members under a single category. This brought an end 1o the
Charity's use of "Lady Tavemers”, thus presenting a clearer simpler image to the ocutside world and ansuring
that we adopted a modern and inclusive approach so that all people regardless of their gender, background,
or status could have equality,

Evenis

Events are a core parl of the culiure of the organisation. As well as providing ¢ forom for Members and
supporters 1o socialise ond to fundraise for our charitable programmaes, they provide opportunities for our
participants to speak directly to attendees about the impact that our programmes have, and thus build a
better understanding of the way in which our work can help disadvantaged and disabled young people.

Covid has had a significant impact on the number and type of events we have been able to hold during the
year, Our normal Christmas season in 2020 was limited to online evenis, and this continued through to the
summer. Outdoor fundraisers — cricket matches and golf days - confinued successfully, albeit modified to
meet current circumstances. We were delighted that events started againin late summer and have continued
into a successful Christmas season for 2021.

Qur volunteer regional committees {we have over 50 regicns around the country of which over 30, despite the
impact of the pandemic, are generally active af any point in time)} were able to orgainse a range of small
events, online activities, and in summer months golf days and cricket matches. This maintained a sense of
activity across the country and enabled those volunteers to plan for @ post covid level of activity to which the
Charity is now retuming.

Qur Cricket committee looks after the Lord's Taverners Xl that play in matches raising awareness of the Charity,
together with funds at venues as diverse os Goodwood, Bray, Cholmondeley Castle, Guernsey and Tolteridge,
The teams cre often mixed gender and are drawn from the world of entertainment, sport, and also from the
ECB's disability cricket squads.

The Golf committee organise a series of M25 based fundrdaising events as well as golf society days for members.
Events such s the Long Room Concert and the Christmas Carol Service are organised by the Music
commiflee, while on a purely sccial level the Bridge commillee organises matches against MCC and House
of Lords {amongst others). Each of thase commitiees is volunteer led and is supported by the executive tfeam.

That having been said - more than ever our thanks go to ali the volunteers, Members, supporters, sponsors,
and organisers across the couniry who enable the charity to continue to raise much needed funds through
quizzes, wine tastings, virfual dinners, spensored challenges, silent auctions and draws.

Members

Our Members and Regions are a very special part of the Taverner community. As well as plaving a major role
in supporting our events on a regular asis, in London and naticnally, they also provide us with a significant
barnk of volunteers who work with us both on our fundraising activities and in supporting cur charitable
programmes through volunteering, supporing presentations and working with the locat schools and
communities in identifying potential new projects. There are approximately 3,300 members of the Lord's
Taverners Charity. Additionally, there are over 300 members of the Johnners Trust which is administered by the
Lord's Taverners.
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individual Supporters and Sponsors

Many fantastic and generous individuals support our causes in many different ways, including paricipating in
the London Marathen and other challenge events, undertaking sponsored activities, making cne off
donations, sponsering our events or progrommes and by making us a bensficiary of their estate in their will,
gither in terms of funds or of sporfing and Tavemers memorabilia collected over a lifetime.

During the Covid fimes we have seen numerous fundraising efforts on behalf of the Charity including
participants in virtual marathons and sponsored events from home or within their local communities. This year
special thanks go to the England Disability Cricket squad who undertook virtual fundraising to raise funds for
the Super 15 programme, to the team behind the Masked Cricketer, and in particular to Uoyd Scott who
underiook the Three Pecks challenge in a deep sea diving suit and to Michael Femndale and his five "reverse”
marathons in five days. Our thanks go 1o you ond to everycne who has supported us during these fimes.,

Strategic Relationships with businesses and other organisalions

Qur corporate relationships take on many forms, generally linked to the corporate social responsibility and
marketing engagement activities of crganisations, but alse Tncreasingly tied into staff engagement and
volunteering opportunities that our programmes present. These relationships have allowed us 1o increase owr
charitable reach and impact, while providing powerful community engagement, business, brand and staff
development opportunities for our partners. Our website includes details of o number of our pariners, and out
thanks go to all of them.

Trusts and Foundations

Our Trusts and Foundations team continue to build strong partnerships across all of our activities, Qurreputation
as a reliable delivery partner continues to open new doors for us and our investment in monitoring and
evaluation is becoming recognised by our supporters.

As well as the organisations set out in Note 17 to the financial stafements who have provided support
specifically to our programmes, we would also like to thank everyone who has made general donations to the
Charity, including:- People's Sport Trust [part of the People's Postcode Lottery), the Christopher Laing
Foundation, Thormtons Charitable Trust, Comiche Trust, Cricket Umpires and Scorers Trust, Champions UK plc,
Lesley Williams. Loppylugs and Barbara Morrison Trust, Elizabeth and Price Zaiger Trust, Advent of Change,
Black Opal Travel, Howzat Golf, The Masked Cricketer, England Disability Cricket Squad, Roger and Maggie
Smith, Lioyd Scott, Michael Ferndale, The Geoff & Fiona Squire Foundation, Seabourn Cruises, Duncan Sinclair,
Robin Stanton-Gleaves, Dirk Odendacl Diamonds, Champions, Denness Luckhurst Foundation, Clyde and Co,
Viking Cruises, cur marathon runners and other challenge participants, and many others including many
individuals - Thank you.

England and Wales Cricket Board

In 2021 we launched o new multi-year partnership with the England and Wales Cricket Board to help tackle
inequality and provide opportunities for young people who have disabilities to access cricket within their local
communities, This will be achieved initially through the growth of the Super 15 programme into all 32 county
cricket boards and the creation of localised community cricket hubs to provide young people living with @
disability to have the chance to play regular and competitive cricket. Additionally, we will be looking to
enhance our work in Special Educational Needs Schools to provide those with more limiting disabilities to
engage in cricket through our Takzle Cricket programme,
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Financial review

Infroduction

The financial results for the year ended 30 Seplember 2021 show a balanced position oh unrestricted reserves,
This has meant that the Charity remains confident as to is future financial position.

The following sets out sorme of the detail behind this position, and itis evident that severat areas of the Charity’s
operations have been significantly impacted by the pandemic.
Financial Resulis

The financial results of the Charlty are shown on page 34 in the Statement of Financial Activities. Below is o
summary of the overall activity for the last three years:

Year ended 30 September
201 2020 201¢
£000 £000 £000
Income
Fundraising events a85 2,043 3839
Donations 2,693 2,233 2,311
Legacies 46 5 432
Subscriptions 300 3 317
Investment and otherincome - ) 122 152 180
4,044 4,744 7.080
Cost of events (323) o (vaay  (2,1464)
Cantribution from fundraising octivity 3,653 3.603 4914
Qperaling and fundraising costs {1,549 [1,455) {1,447}
Surplus of Income over expenditure 2,104 _- 2,148 3,467
Operating and fundraising costs: Pence in the £ 42.4p 40.4p 29.4p
Less; Charltable expenditure
Cricket programmes 2,267 2,336 2,465
Minibuses 37 2564 1,134
Disability grants 10% 34 724
Johnneis Trus . X 14 46
2,433 3,620 4,369
MNet expendilure before profits on investments {32%) (1,472) {902}
Net gains on investmenis 440 {153) 408
Net income (expenditure) for the year 111 (1.625) (474)
Funded by (from)
Unrestricted reserves (33} {4779 22
Restricted reserves 218 &1 {40)
Deasignated Strategic Development reserve - {737) {419
Reserves designated for specific projects {74) {470 {57
111 {1,625) {494)
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The Trustees anticipated a significant deficit for the financial year 1o September 2021, howaver the final
outcome was a moadest surplus. The key elements that have created this result are as follows:

» the various restrictions meant that programmes could not be gelivered on a face-to-face basis for a
significant part of the year. This reduced our programme costs as development cfficers were
furloughed and venue costs were not incurred. Instead, our programmes were delivered through
online platforms;

¢ fundraising events (normally generating approximately £1.5m @ year, net of direct event Costs)
suffered significanily, falling to just under £500,000 in the year 1o September 2021;

e there was a lower level of engagement by corporates due te their own commercial pressures;
s The investment gains made within our investrment portfolio;

¢ given lower level of resources we suspended minibus grants for the year, reflecting also the fact that
the schools ihemselves were focussing on student delivery.

The ongoing support of Pegple’s Sports Trust {enhanced in the year) and Berkeley Foundation were important
for the Charity, as was the new multi-year portnership with the England and Wales Cricket Board secured at
the beginning of 2021. These, coupled with the uplift in the value of the investment portfolio, led to an overall
balanced position.

The impact of Covid - Financial and non-Financial
Operdafional, including staff

Dwring ¢ large part of the year we continued to allow all staff to work from home and ensured there were
ddequate systems and connectivity in place to ensure that this could happen. We ¢lso provided sources of
support via our HR advisers, through the private medical scheme helplings, the introduction of a general
Employee Assistance Programme with Health Assured, and specific support for individuals as and when
required.

Where appropriate to the business needs of the Charity we furloughed individuals either full time or part tirme,
maintaining confact with them 1o ensure they remained engaged with the Charity when they retumed from
furlough. In addition, we retained a flexible approach to where staff worked from, responding positively to
requests from members of staff who wished to work from different locations — be they elsewhere in the UK with
farmily or, in a couple of cases, with family overseas. We continued to ensure that the office was safe and
secure for any Individuals who, either because of thelr role or because of their own mental well-being, wished
te work in the office from time to time.

All of our meetings, be they Trustees, Committees, Staff, or otherwise continued to be online through platforms
such as Teams and Zoom,

In line with government guidance, the last eighteen months have seen a mixture of working from home, and
hybrid office working. Throughout this period we have consulted staff and, generally, when permitted, we
have seen employeeas in the office for fwo days a week, with some attending more often. Our meetings have
been largely hybrid, however we are now seeing a return to full physical committee meetings and there is no
doubt that in-person conversations have been missed and play an important part in communication. We
continue to offer hybrid solutions to enable peopls to attend remately where they feel more comfortable
doing so.

We believe that operational efficiency has been maintained during this pericd. however it is acknowledged
that it has placed significont additional pressures on many members of staff and the Board would like to thank
the staff team for their support during this period,
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income

As can be seen from the financicl results revenue generation was significantly hit, primarily in the following
areas:

+  We were not able to hold fundraising events across the UK during < large part of the year. This is an
imperiant area of fundraising for the Charily, typically generating £1.5m towards our programmes.
Events started to be held in summer 2021 and as can be seen from the Annual Report they have made
a modest contribution ta the Charity;

= A number of our events, while having the aim of raising funds, have inevitably had a focus on
communication and reconnection and to date these have been well attended;

«  Qurplans for the development of Corporate fundraising were significantly impeded by the contfinuing
pandemic however we believe we are well placed for 2022 to expand this area.

The end of the financial year and the period through to Christmas has seen a significant retum to events, and
while attendances were lower following the pandemic, we are seeing much needed funds being raised at
these events for our programmes.

Financlal Commentary

Income for the financial year fell from £4.7m to £4.0m as a result primarily of the cancellation of all but a few
of our traditional fundraising events. 2019, the last "normal” yeor, showed gross event turnover of £3.8m. 2020
saw this reduced to iust over £2m (benefiting from the Christmas 2019 season), and in 2021 i was further
reduced to just under £200,000. After deducting the direct cost of events, this was ¢ fall in event contribution
from £1.67m 1o less than £500,000.

Our donation inceme has improved from £2.23m to £2.69m through the new partnership with England and
Wales Cricket Board, and additionat support from People's Sports Trust {part of PPL) and Sport England and
we are grateful for these important contributions to the Charity.

Qur other income sources have maintained its 2020 levels — a strong indication of the continued support for
our charitable purposes from our existing Members and partners.

In terms of our total fundraising expenditure this has gone down from £2.6m in 2020 to £1.9m in 2021 -~ agdin
direct function of the cancellation of events and therefore costs such as venues, catering, auction prizes, efc.
are significantly reduced year on year.

Overall, our charitable expenditure has also fallen from £3.62m to £2.43m., being the net effect of the following:

Cricket programmes for young people with disabiliies and [ or from disadvantoged communities has
seen an expansion in terms of geographic coverage, particularly within Super 1s; however this has
been offset by the need, as referred to previcusly, to suspend face to face programme delivery in
favour of online hubs. Whie there are variations in the direct costs, the level of programme
management resources needed for these transitions from face to face 1o virtual and then back is
significant, hence overall expenditure has remained similar 1o 2020;

Minibus grants were suspended for the year to September 2021, however there was still programme
team time and costs involved in ensuring thai grants approved in 2020 were delivered,

Disability and Special Needs granfs have reduced to £102,000 from £314,000 as a direct conseguence
of a strategic decision to move away from this area as a core part of our charitable aclivity,

Johnners Trust normally supports development festivals in the area of Visually Impaired cricket: these
events did not happen in summer 2021. The Trust continues to support emerging young players, many
of whom have been placed in greater hardship as o result of the pandemic, through travel and
eguipment grants,
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Operating and fundraising costs

All of the costs of the Charity are related, either directiy or indirectly, to our charitable purposes. In looking at
costs it Is important to appreciate the judgments involved in how costs are reflected in the annual financial
statements.

The Charity’s cost structure falls into departmental headings and the following gives a broad indication of how
costs incurred in each of those areas are treated:

» Charitable Programmes team - being the individudls who manage each of our programmes and also
gather data to enable us 1o report on the Impact of our programmes to our supporters and o the
general public. Their costs are directly attributable 10 the underlying progrommes;

s Marketing ond Communications team — whose role is to ensure that as far as possible there is a good
awdareness of the charitable wark that we are delivering, and also the events that we are organising
in order to raise funds to suppert our future activity. Their costs are split between charitable activity
and fundraising;

« [vents team - organising our main events frorm Chancery Lane with the prime purpose of raising funds
for aur future charitable activity. There is generally an element within our events which focusses on the
impact our programmes have had, and the successes we have achieved, but the madjority of their
costs are regarded as operating and fundraising costs;

» Regions team ~ supporting eur volunteer regions both in their fundraising activities, and also in their
agwareness programmes, and in identifying potential beneficiary organisations in their local areas.
Again, the majority of their costs are regarded as operating ond fundraising costs:

» Fundraising team (in relafion to corporates as well as from charitable trusts and foundations) — their
costs are regarded predominantly as operating and fundraising costs:

¢« Membership team — as well as providing an annual donation, a number of our Members cilse support
our events and provide financial support directly towards our programmes. The costs of supporting
the membership and membership communications is regarded as predominantly operating and
fundraising costs;

» Finance, administration, and CEC team - this team suppeorts both our fundraising functions and the
charitable programme activity and, having regard to the levels of activity and the volume of
transactions, their costs are split between charitable programme costs and fundraising and operating
costs;

+« Office and other related costs — in general these costs will be split, based on the allocation of
employee costs, as between charitable programmes, and operating and fundraising costs. Some
specific areas - for example those involved with governance — are regarded s operating costs.

Cur operating and fundraising costs as a proportion of contribution from fundraising activities has inevitably
risen over the last two years, as income has fallen, and is currently at 40p. it should be borne in mind that the
operational team is structured tc deliver far higher levels of fundraising than has keen possible during Covid,
This is expected to fall to approximately 25pin the financial year to September 2022 and to be further reduced
over the future years.

A large part of our fundraising costs are people and we took advantage of the various government job
support schemes {the grants are included in income)} to retain where appropriaie cperational copability,

We have ¢ number of different income streams, as a result of which the traditional charity fundraising ratios
do not always necessarily apply. These income streams include:

=  Membership subscriptions, although a low source of income, typically have a higher cost ratio due to

mailings, database maintenance and our govemance and election processes. Importantly though it
Is this membership base that adds strength to our events proposition;
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« Our events are managed by an in-house team of staff as opposed o being contracted out and this
also increases our overheadratio. We do this bacause we run a number of Member supported events,
and il is beneficial in organising these for the team to have personal knowledge of cur Members and
supporters;

» The Regions operate with & high degree of autonomy and therefore a lower propertion of their funds
raised go an support costs — although this may increase with central support on flyers, branding,
sourcing auction items and other factors;

e While events income is under increased pressure, they do remdain an important mechanism for
communicating with our partners and supporters, and showcasing the work we underfake.

Result for the year

The overall surplus for the year was £111,000, including a surplus on the investment portfolio of £440,000. In
terms of our undesignated unrestricted reserve this fell by £33,000 in the period. The remaining part, being a
surplus, arose through raising restricted funds in the year 10 September 2021 which will then be spent on specific
charitable activity in the year to 30 September 2022

In addition we used part of our designated funds 1o fund cur annual suppert of Fields in Trust {£70,000) and for
Table Cricket kit development {£4,000).

Investments

The Charity's investments are managed by Close Brothers Asset Management Limited, The investment criteria
comprise the following broad investment parameters:

¢ Preservation of value in real terms;

¢ Achieve capital growth overall [a targeted average annual total return of 4% above RPl was
considered an appropriate target over the investmeant life of the porifolio); and

e Currently considered to be a medium-term portfolio —i.e., 5 - 7 years.

The risk profile was seen as low-medium and the return is evaluated on a total return {i.e., not distinguishing
between capital and ncome) basis. As at 30 September 202! the nvestment porifolio was valued at
£4,993,000., The portfolio opened the year with a valuation of £5,207,000 and during the financial year £7 50,000
was drawndown, Adjusting for this drawdown indicates a iolal retum during the pericd of approximately 12%.

Since the end of the financial year up to 300 March 2022 the Close Portfolio has grown 1o £5,154,000, an
increase of just over 3%,

The poritfolio comprises a mixture of equities and bonds and further analysis is provided in the financial

statements, The Investment manager has confirmed that if there was a requirement to access cash, that at
least 0% of the portfolio couid be realised with a negligible impact on value,
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Strategy

Although the Covid situation has clearly had a significant impact en the Charity, it has also provided an
opportunity to take stock, and to consider our strategic direction as we emerge from the current situation. The
Leadership Team and the Trustees have developed a stralegy for the next three to five years, that includes
the following seven key goals:

I

To become a Values led organisation.

To embed a culture whereby all of our decisions are driven by placing young people facing inequdlity at
the heart of our decision making and actions, We need to continue te commit to equadlity, diversity and
inclusion to be at the centre of cur organisation, not just our participants.

To be driven by fnsighf

Declsion making across the Charity should be driven by insight, not just data. Creating a culture of
continual leaming and refresh enables insight to inform and drive our decision making, be it in programme
development, fundraising, or business planning.

To be impacitful

To continue to develop our understanding of the impact that our pregrammes have on both participants
on an individual basis, and on those around them - families, communities, and friends. This requires a
continual process of self-examination, and a transparent and open environment in which both successes
can be celebrated, but also areas of concem orimprovement can be discussed and developed apenly,

Being impactful will also drive our charltable focus — enabling us 1o focus on areas where we have direct
impact on the experiences and lives of participants,

To grow our reach fo those who need us most

Prioritising the sustainable growth of our programmes to the communities and young people within them
who need us most is a priority,

To positively influence and lead social change

To become arecognised and credible leader in ourindustry through the work we do to positively influence
policy and decision making. alongside this we would seek to collaborate with other people and
organisations to positively influence and shape thinking, approaches attitudes and behaviours to
overcome inequalities,

To creale a more sustainable income moded

we will seek to broaden and diversify ourincome streams to de-risk the charity from over reliance onsingle
sources and types of income. We would seek 1o expand and diversify our supporter base, and as part of
this grow and invest in the development and stewardship of our membership.

On The back of our programmes we would continue to build a partnership driven approach to fundraising.
To become a high performing organisation

This requires o continuous cycle of reviewing and improving our business processes and systems, ensuring
a madern, effective and efficient organisation where policies, processes and systems are continuously
improved. This includes a marketing and communicaticns narrative that is always on message, designed
to inform and improve understanding of the Charity and ifs impact, continual improvement to financial
architecture and monagement and being fully transparent and accountable for performance and
achievements against objectives.
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Reserves

The reserves can therefore be summarised as follows:

£000
Unrestricted reserves {Undesignated) General reserves to ensure continuity
The Charity 3,593
Subsidiaries 145
3.738
Designated Funds Funds set aside by Trustees for specific
National Cricket Disabilily Centre 500 purposes
Table Cricket Development 539
Programme Evaluction 200
Super 1s Deveiopment 100
Fields in Trust partnership 210
1,549
Restricted reserves 300 Funds donated for specific purposes
5,587

Unrestricted Reserves

The Trustees have considered the appropriate level of unrestricted reserves having regard to the identified risks
that could have a serious impaci on the Charity's ability to raise funds, and In the context of Charity
Commission Publication 19 "Building Resilience”. In identifying the target level of unrestricted reserves, which
would be reconsidered at the end of each financial year, the Trustees consider the difference between the
level of expenditure, including overheads and chaiitable programmes, that they consider shoutd represent
continuation of the current activity at an acceptable level, and a conservative level of income that the
Trustees can expect te be received.

The Trustees have considered budgeted total expenditure (taking into account both charitable expenditure,
and staff/office ffundraising costs) and, 1o the extent that is not covered by contracted restricted income,
considered that a reserves policy of heolding between four and seven monihs of that net expenditure as
unrestricted reserves is appropriate for the Charity.

In considering 1his the Trustees have taken account of:

» The various sources of income and the degree of reliance that can be placed on each of those,
informed by the experience of the last two years in particular;

+ The risks faced by the Charity in various areas, including working capital, income shortfall, contractuai
obligations, and the need jo be able to react effectively 1o changing circumstances.

Based on the above the Trustees have identified that they need to retain unrestiicted reserves for the Charity
of £2,398,500.

The unrestricted reserves of the Charlty as at 30 September 2021 were £3,593,000, which is £1.19m over the
target level. The Trustees expect the Charity's actual position to align itself with the target position through:

+ Investment in capacity within the Charity, particularly around fundraising, reflected in the pianned
deficit for the financial years to 30 September 2022 and 2023;

» Specific investment over the next eighteen months in technology and infrastructure in order to
further modernise the Charity in accordance with ifs strategic objectives,

e Anincrease over time of the target unrestricted reserves level as the Charity expands.
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Designated Reserves
The Trustees have created the following designated funds out of the Special Frojects Fund:

Table Cricket Development Fund £600.000, of which £61.000 has been expended, leaving a balance
of £539,000.

This is to finance the redesign and replacement of the table cricket kit currently in existence,
improving the durability of the product, the ease of set up. and creating an enhanced
appeal for young people. Covid has significantly delayed this project. We now have
prototypes undergoing evaluation and testing and it is expected that in summer 2022 we will
move inte manufacture and distribution and expect this designated reserve to be kargely
utilised during the next twelve months,

Independent programme evaluation Fundg - £200,000

As our programmes expand, the Trustees believe that in 2022/2023 a full independent review
of the effectiveness of our programmes should be undertaken, and funds have been set aside
to commission that review and implement its recommendations.

Super 15 Development fund - £500,000 of which £100,000 is carried forward

As g consequence of cur agreement with the England and Wales Cricket Board for the
expansion of disability cricket, particularly Super 1s, the Trustees set aside a sum of £500,000
to fund the expansion of activity in advance of the ECB agreement commencing. Given the
delays in retuming to face-to-face activity, the balance brought forward of £100,000 will now
be used during the year ending 30 September 2022,

National Disability Cricket Centre, Worcester - £500,00¢

The Trustees have set aside o sum of £500,000 for a potential investment alongside ECB and
the University of Worcester in a new dedicated disability cricket centre linked to the University
of Worcester, and to complement the New Road cricket ground which is to be the main
venue for major disability cricket fixtures. The University has now received planning consent
and is commencing construction. We are now finalising our arrangements in relation 1o our
support and we expect to make the grant during 2022,

Figlcls i Trust Partnership - £350,000 of which £140,000 has been utilised
The charity has entered into a five-year partnership with Fields in Trust for the pretection and

maintenance of green field spaces that complement our Wicketz activity across ihe UK,
Under this agreement the Charity has agreed 1o commit £70,000 a year,
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Our Governance Structure

Qur primary purposes and public benefit

We cany out arange of activities with the main Gim of empowering disadvantaged young people and those
with a disability through cricket. We believe that sport, and particularly cricket, and help yeung people gain
confidence as well as build social skills, leadership, and also engage with their communities. We believe that
this enhances their prospects in later life.

We therefare believe that we meet the public benefit requirements as set out within the Charity Commission’s
guidance. Furthermore, public benefit guidance plays a central role in developing our future strategy.

Our Board of Trustees

The Trustees, who are also directors of the Company under Company Law, as at the date of this report are set
out on page 1. The Trustees who served during the financial year are as follows:

Tim Luckhurst Chair

Sandra Verkuyten OBE Vice-Chair

Richard White FCA Trecisurer

Suzy Christopher Appointed t4 October 2020
Mike Gatting OBE

Abeed Janmohamed Appointed 14 September 2021
Gordon Kennedy

lan Martin

Julie Norris Appointed 20 October 2020
CajSohal

Alistair Subba Row

Bob Bevan MBE Appointed 14 September 2021, Resigned 28 Cctober 2021
John Taylor Resigned 14 September 2021

John Taylor came to the end of his term as an Elected Trustee and chose not to stand for election again, Bob
Bevan was elected as a Trustee prior 1o the 2021 AGM and was formally appointed on 14 September 2021, He
then stood down on 28 October 2021. The Beard would like to thank both of them for their contribution to bath
the Board and the Charity during their term of office, and look forward to their future support of the Charity.

How does an individval become a Trustee?
The Board comprises up to twelve Trustees of whom:
« Seven are elected by the Members; and
= Up to Five are Appointed by the Board, based on recommendations from the Nominations
Committee.
Elected Trustees
Elected Trustees are voled on each vear by the Members of the Lord's Taverners, normally prior 1o the Annual
General Meeting, for ¢ term of three years. Each year at least two Eected places are made available

{generclly due to Trustees reaching The end of a three year term, orthrough a vacancy arising) and no Elected
Trustee is allowed to serve moaore than nine consecutive years in office.
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Appoinfed Trustees

If the Trustees, in discussion with the Nominations Committee, do not consider that there are the reguisite skills
on the Board, then they have the right to appeoint up to five addifional Trustees to provide those skills, The
Nominations Committee is then asked to oversee the process whereby individuals can apply to become a
Trustee, be interviewed, and then be recommended to the Board. Appointed Trustees are for terms of up to
three years, after which their re-appointment would be reviewed. No Appointed Trustees is dllowed to serve
more than nine consecutive vears.

The Nominations Commiflee has specific responsibility for the management of the election or ballot process
for the election of Elected Trustees, including the provision of guidance 1o the Trustees and to the Members
on the strengths and weaknesses of candidates in those elections. In addition, it also provides guidonce (and
if dppropricte will make recommendations) to the Trustees on candidates for Appointed Trustee positions. To
ensure its independence, the majerity of the Committee’s members are not Trustees.

The Trustee representative on this Commitiee is Richard White.

The Trustees are committed 1o ensuring that the Beard has the skills and experience to be able to oversee the
activities of the Charity and to set its strategy. The way in which individuals become trustees is therefore kept
under constant review,

Trustee delegation and conduct

The Trustees have overall responsibility for the organisation including its strategy. Doy-to-day responsibility for
the operation of the organisation is delegated to the Chief Executive and their team.

Trusteses receive details of the responsibilities of a charity trustee on nomination for election. Following election
or appointment Trustees receive additional information on the organisation, together with the opportunity to
meet with the Chdirman and members of the Senior Leadership Team 1o discuss aspects of the strategy,
operation ond govermnance of the business, and are alse encouraged to attend an external course on trustee
duties should they request it. They also have an induction session which would normally be led by a member
of the Governance and Finance Committee.

The following actlivities support the Trustees in fulfiling their responsibllities:

¢+ The Tiustee Board meets at least six times a year, normally with the Senior Leadership Team, to review
the activity of the charity;

+  Qutside of the Truslee meetings there are regular meetings between {he Chair of the Boord and the
Chief Executive, between the Honorary Treasurer and the Chief Operating Officer, and between variocus
other Trustees and members of the management team;

» The delegation of certain elements of the crganisation's responsibilities to sub-committees, each of
which comprises at least one Trusiee, Members wilh particulor skills in the relevont area, and members
of the executive team responsikle for that activity; and

¢+ The preporation of regular reports covering all significant aspects of the organisation, circulated 1o
relevant committees and to Trustees.
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Qur Committees

The Trustees have established a number of committees in order to have oversight of various aspects of the
Charity. Each committee has itls own terms of reference and has of least one Trustee representative. The
principal Committees are as follows:

Governance and Finance Commiltee - Trustee representatives: Richard White and Sandra Verkuyten

The Governance and Finance Committee has ¢ focus on the Charity's governance and complicnce
matters, as well as oversight over financial matters across the Charity. The committee meets at least
four times a year and works with the executive team to ensure that there is g framework in place for
transparency, accountability and risk management. As part of its role, it considers the independence
and appropriateness of the organisation’s auditors, with whom the committee will then work closely
in relation to financial controls and reporting. The committee also deals with issues that arise in relation
to compliance with legal and charity regulation as well as ensuring that best practice in governance
is always being addressed.

Charitable Programmes Commiftee - Trustee representatives: Alistair Subba Row, Cgj Sohal and Mike
Gatting.

Oversees all of the aclivity of the charitable programmes team, including approval of new initiatives,
and consideration of issues anising out of the programmas. It also works clasely with the executive
tearn in considering areas of impact, and the processes in place for monitoring and evaluation of the
effectiveness of programmes,

Fundraising Commilfee — Trustee representatives: Abeed Janmohamed and Gordon Kennedy

The Cormmittee works with the executive team on the areas of marketing and fundraising, debating
new initiatives and current trends. In particular it will consider areas of brand, external communication,
and fundrgising campaigns, as well as considering ways fo enhance existing activity.

Membership and People Commiltee — Trustee Representatives: Suzy Christopher, lan Martin and Julie
Norris.

Responsible for all aspects of Member admission, recruitment, and engagement. The committee clso
has oversight of the activities of staff, suppaorters, and members of the regional commitiees. The
committee also focusses on Equdiity Diversity and Inclusion, and Values,

Treasury Commiflee - Trustee representative: Richard White

Responsible for reviewing investiment performance and evaluating the investment managers, and
reports into the Governance and Finance Committee

The Trustees have also established a Remuneration Commilee, which includes the Chair, Vice Chair and the
Treasurer, to consider the remuneration of certain members of the Senior Leadership Team, The Committee
evaluates the performance of the organisation over the last twelve months and also the performance of the
team members, and based on their expetience, makes recommendations to the Trustees,

As well as Members with appropriate expertise and members of the Executive team, the Chair of a Commitiee

can dliso invite individuals who are outside of the Charity to sit on Committees where their expertise is
considered appropriate,
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Risks

The Trustees, with the executive team, review the risk register on a regular basis. This is to ensure that there is a
clear recognition of the significant risks for the Charlty and that there are plans in place, as far as is reasonably
practical, to mitigate those risks.

The Trustees, advised by the Governance and Finance Committee, have identified the key risks and have put
in place a number of procedures in order 1o, as far as possible, safeguard the Charity from those risks. These
include:

Sofeguarding

Safeguarding applies across all of the Charity's activities, ond relates to every individual who comes
into contact with us, whether they are participants, supporters, staff, trustees, volunteers or members
of the public. Following an independent evoluation of our approach to safeguarding, we have
strengthened our training and communication channels for both staff and volunteers, enhanced the
status of safeguarding at Board level, and set our approach to safeguarding on our website. In retation
to our cricket programmes we continue to work closely with the ECB to ensure that the programme
coaches are fully trained and have the ability to raise concerns.

Media and Social Media

Inappropriate comments on social media or within the media can, in the digital age, guickly gain
mormentum, whether they genuinely reflect the views of the Charity or not, The Cherity continues to
review and enhance its systems for managing and menitoring social media, providing guidance to
valunteers — particularly those in organizing events, improving briefings for speakers at our events, and
enhancing our communication framework generally.

Fundraising

Unlike many charities, the Lord's Taverners derives income from a number of sources. That having
been sdid the pandemic has shown that significant income streams {such as fundraising events) can
swiftly came to a halt. Qur partnerships with People’s Sports Trust, Englang and Wales Cricket Board,
and Berkeley Foundation are significant however there remains a need to expand our range of
fundraising to reduce our reliance on a handful of key funders, ¢r a single income stream. The Charity,
as part of its strategic review, is investing significantly in its fundraising capability and, under the
guidance of the new CEOQ, is developing an improved approach to fundraising, underpinned by the
Charity's strong reserves position,

Governance

The Lord's Taverners is @ Company limited by guarantee, where our Members are our “shareholders”
for companies act purposes. This gives us the ethos of a Membership Charlty, as has been part of the
Charity's culture since it was founded in 1950. In the current environment it is essential that the Charity
conforms with all of the governance requirements, and indeed reflects best charity sector practice
wherever possible. This may lead to tensions between the need for good governance ond the
fraditional membership ethos of the organisation. The Board commissioned on independent
governance review in Spring 2020 and hove implemenied most of the key recommendations,
including the introduction of Codes of Conduct, and the bringing together of the Membership under
a single name — the Lord's Taverners — and thus ceasing to use the brand “Lady Taverners". This was
to ensure that there was no perception that the Charity might be split by gender.

Governance is reflected in the quality ond effectiveness of the Board and the introduction of a
Nominations Commitiee in 2018 has continued to ensure that the Board has the right mix of skills and
experience 1o ensure that the Charity is properly managed.
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Asset and Resource management

Good mandgement of our assets and resources, be they people, property. investments, brands,
repuiation, or programmes is an essential part of good governance. Each of these areqs, while
defegated on a day-to-day basis o the executive team, is overseen by a particular committee to
ensure that the Charity has strong internal controls, effectively manages all of its assets, and., for
example, in relation to staff and volunteers provide the appropriate training and tools for them to
develop.

Cyber / Information Technology

Protection of our data contained on our Membership and Supporier databases and security around
all of our [T systems — particularly in a time of hybrid working - is constantly monitored. In late 2020 the
Charity commissioned an independent review of IT systems and security and as a result a number of
improvements were made to the infrastructure and access requiremenits. IT security status is a standing
item on the regular meetings of the Governance and Finance Committee. In the light of changes in
data regulation following Brexit we have retdined an externdl data consuitant to undertake an
independent review of all of our data management precesses and procedures.

Individuals within the management team have been identified as the primary point of contact in relation te
particular risk issues and it is their responsibility, along with the rest of the team, to consider the organisation's
resporse 1o issues should they arise, and for overseeing the mitigation and the reporting of any relevant
matters.

Statement of Trustee Responsibilities

The Trustees, who are also directors of the charitable company, are responsible for preparing their report and
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company low requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Trustees have elected fo prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accouniing Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). The financial
statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the charitable company
and the group and of the surplus or deficit for that period. In preparing these financial statements the Trustees
are required to;

Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently

Ohserve methods and principles in the Charities SORP

Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements

+ Prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropricte to assume that the
charitable company will continue in operation

The Trustees are ako responsible for keeping proper accounting records thal disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 20046. They are clso responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other iregularities.

Statement of disclosure 1o the auditors
So far as the Trustees are aware;
(a} there is no relevant audit infermation of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and
(b} they have taken all the sieps that they ought to have taken as Trustees in order te make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of
that inforrmation.
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Auditors

In dccordance with Section 485 of the Companies Act 20046 a resolution proposing that Haysmacintyre LLP be
appointed as auditors will be put to the Annual General Meeling.

Qutlook

Overview

The core of our Strategy is to put participants at the centre of our decision making and this is reflected
throughout the Business Plan for the next three years.

Qur position as the lead charity for the delivery of disability cricket to young people in challenging
circumstances enables us to bulld on the current success of the Super 15 and Table Cricket programmes, and
expand them in ferms o geographic coverage, participants, engagement, and depth of impact. In this
regard our partnerships with the ECB, Berkeley Foundation, Sport England and others will play a crucial role in
the long-term success of these programmes.

The Charity Is also evolving. While Tts sense of fun, camaraderie and heritage that link us to our founders remcins
a core part of the organisation, we also need to recognise that we are first and foremost a charity estabilished
for young people in challenging circumstances, and the volues, culture, and governance need to be
continually embedded into our day to day activities across the Charity to ensure we can perform at the
highest levels for the benefit of those young pecple.

The Charily, thanks to its reserves position and careful management, has remained resilient during the current
Covid situation. While revenues have fallen and are expected to continue to be below pre-Covid levels
potentially through te Spring 2022, the Charity has been able 1o reduce ifs cost base, and 1o reduce its
charitable expenditure in areas which may be regarded going forward as non-core — areas such as sensory
rooms, play spaces and wheelchairs. We have also seen a reduction in demand for minibuses and we are
continually reviewing these in the light of environmental concerns.

The Trustees would like to acknowledge the efforts of staff, volunteers, Members, development officers and
supporters acress the country who have clearly demonstrated the importance of the work we undertcke, in
particular in these challenging circumstances.

Approved by the Trustees on 319 March 2022 and signed on their behalf by:

— v

Tim Luckhurst
Chairmnan of Trustees
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Independent Auditor's report to the Members and Trustees of The Lord’s Taverners
Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Lord's Taverners Limifed for the year ended 30 September
2021 which comprise Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities, the Group and Charity Balance Sheets,
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The financial reporing framework that has been applied in their preparation
is applicable low and United Kingdoem Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of reland {United Kingdom Generally
Accepied Accounting Practice).

In our gpinion, the financial statements:

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent charitable company’s affairs as
at 30 September 2021 and of the group’s and parent charitable company's net movement in funds,
including the income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

+« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and the
Charities and Trustee Investment [Scotland) Act 2005 and regulation 8 of the Charities Accounts
[Scotland} Regulations 2004,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in acceordance with Infernational Standerds on Auditing [UK) [ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled cur other ethical responsibilities in caccordance with these
requirements, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provides
a basis for our epinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any maierial uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group’s ability to continue as
a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are auihorised for
issue,

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are desciibed in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other information. The ofther information comprises the information included
in the Trustees' Report and the President's Introduction. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the otherinformation and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial stalements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materialy misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required 1o determine whether there is
maierial misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our epinion. based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit;
¢ the information given in the Trustees’ Report (which includes the strategic reporl and the direciors’
report prepared for the purposes of company law) for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared s consistent with the financial statements; and
+ thestrategic report and the directors' report included within the Trustees’ Report have been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent charitable company and its
environment obldined in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trusiees'
Report (which incerporatas the strategic report and the directors' report).

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2004
and the Charity Accounts {Scetland) Regulations {as amended) us to report to you If, in our opinion:
» qadequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent charitable company, or refurns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
« the parent charitable company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns; or
s+ certain disclosures of frustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
* we have not received dll the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities statement set out on page 29 the trustees (who are also
the directors of the charilable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfled that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial staterments that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent
charitable company's ability to continue as @ going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o
going concemn and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless the frusiees either intend 1o liquidale
the group or the parent charltable company or to cease operations, or have no redlistic aliemative but to do
50,

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objeclives are 1o obtdin reasonable assurance about whether the financial staterments as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errer, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but s not o guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK} will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected 1o influence the economic decisions of users faken on the basis of these
financial statements,

Irregularities, including fraud, are instonces of non-complionce with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
iregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting iregularities,
including fraud is detailed below:
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Based on our understanding of the group and the environment in which it operates, we identified that the
principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to Charity Law and Company Law and we
caonsidered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements.
We dlso considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparaticn of the financial
statements such as the Companies Act 2006 and the Charities Act 2011, and consider other factors such as
payroll tax and sales tax,

We evaluated monagement's incentives and epportunities for fravdulent manipulation of the financial
statements (including the risk of override of controls). Audit procedures performed by the engagemsnt team
included:

Inspecting correspondence with regulators and tax autherities;
Discussions with management including consideration of known or suspected instonces of non-
compliance with laws and regulation and fraud;
Evaluating management’s controls designed to prevent and detect imregularities;

- Identifying and tesling journals; and

- Challenging assumptions and judgemenis made by management in their critical accounting
estimates

A further description of cur responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is locaied on the Financial
Reporting Council's welbsite at: www fre or itorsr nsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, section 44(1){c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment {Scotland)] Act
2005 and regulation 10 of the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006, Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's members those matters we are required to
state to thern in an Auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable company's
members as a Hody, for our audit work, for this report, or for the cpinions we have formed.

%

Thomas Wilson (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Haysmacintyre LLP, Statutory Auditors
10 Queen Street Place London EC4R 1AG

Date: 29 April 2022
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THE LORD'S TAVERNERS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

(incorporating the Income and expenditure account)

For the year ended 30 Sepltember 2021

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds funds 2021 2020
Note General  Designated
£'000 £°000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Income
Income and endowments from:
Fundraising events 2 878 - 7 885 2,043
Yoluntary income
Donations 3 1,560 - 1,133 2,693 2,233
Legacies 46 - - 44 5
Subscriptions and entrance fees 300 - - 300 31!
Investment and other income 4 122 - - 122 152
Total income 2,906 - 1,140 4,046 4,744
Expenditure
Raising funds
Fundraising activities 5 1.942 - - 1,942 2,596
Charitable activities
Disadvantaged and Disabled Cricket 1,294 70 203 2,267 2,336
Minibuses 37 - - 3/ 256
Disability and Special Needs 86 4 19 109 314
Johnnsrs Trust 20 - - 20 14
6 1,437 74 922 2,433 3,620
Total expenditure 3,379 74 922 4,375 6,216
Net income (expenditure) before profits on [473) (74) 218 (329) {1.472)
investments
Net realised and unrealised {losses) gains on 440 - - 440 {153)
investments
MNet income (expenditure) for the year (33) (74) 218 111 {1.625)
Inter fund transfer - - - - -
Net movemnent in funds for the year (33) (74) 218 111 {1.625}
Balances brought forward at § October 3771 1,623 82 5,476 710!
Balances carried forward at 30 16 3.738 1,549 300 5,587 5,476

September

The consoiidated accounts reflact the activilies of the Charity and its subsidiaries  All amounis relate 1o continuing activities.

There are no recognised gains and losses for the current financial year ond the preceding financiol period other than as
shown alzove. The notes on pages 37 1g 51 form part of these financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEETS Company Number: 582579
At 30 September 2021
Group Charity
2021 2020 201 2020
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible fixed assets 10 137 190 137 190
Intangible fixed assets 11 31 49 3 49
Investments

- in subsidiary 12 - - - -

- otherinvestments 12 4,993 5,267 4,993 5,207

5161 3,446 5,161 5,446
CURRENT ASSETS
Stock 13 24 27 24 27
Debtors 14 458 44) 458 441
Cash at bank and in hand 210 @81 782 830
1,392 1,449 1,264 1,298

CREDITORS: amounts falling due

within one year 15 {966) {1.419) [983) {1,432]
NET CURRENT ASSETS {LIABILITIES) 426 30 281 {134)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES BEING NET ASSETS 5,587 5,476 5,442 5312

Represented by:

Unrestricted funds:

- General funds 3,593 3,600 3,593 3,408
- Designated funds 18 1,549 1.623 1,549 1,623
- Johnners Trust 145 163 - “
5,287 5,395 5,142 5,231

Restricted funds 300 81! 300 &1
16 5,587 5,476 5,442 5312

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue on 315 March 2022 and were signed below on its
behalf by:

Tim Luckhurst Richard White FCA
Chairman Treqsurer

The notes on pages 37 to 51 form part of these financial siatements.

35



THE LORD'S TAVERNERS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS AND NOTES

For the year ended 30 September 2021

2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Nef cash used in operafing activities {820) {1,446}
Cash flows from Investing activities
Dividends and interest from investments 122 152
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets (27} {83)
Net change in investment cash (502) 214
Proceeds from sale of investmenis 1.824 2,511
Purchase of investments (658) {1.593)
Net cash provided by investing activities 749 1,200
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the (71) {245)
financial year
Cash and cash equivalents af beginning of 781 1,224
financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 210 981
financial year
NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Reconciliation of net income tc net cash flow from operating
actlivities
Net expenditure for the year {as reported in the

Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities) 111 {1.625)
Depreciation charges 98 74
Net (gains) losses on investments {440} 153
Dividends and interest from investrments f122) {152}
Decredse (increase) in stock 3 f5)
(Increcse} decrease in debtors (17) 698
Decredse in creditors [453) (589)
Net cash used in operating activities [820) {1.444)
Analysis of net debt
Opening cash balances 981 1,226
Net cash ocutflows for the year {71} {245}
Closing cash balances 210 081
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THE LORD'S TAVERNERS LIMITED

NOTES TOC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 September 2021

T ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The tord's Taverners Limited is a private charitable company limited by guarantee [no 582579},
registered in England and Wales at the registered office shown on page |, and dlko registered as a
cherity with the Charity Cormmission in England and Wales [no 306054). and the Office of the Scottish
Charity Regulator {OSCR) {no SCO44238). The charitable company is a public benefit entity as defined
in Financial Reporting Standard 102 ("FRS102"}.

o}

b)

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Companies Act 2006 and the
Charities Act 2011 and Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Staterment of Recommendead
Practice applicable to charities jthe “SORP") preparing their accounts in accordance with
FRS102, the Financial Reporting Stondard applicable in the UK and Ireland. A going concern
basis has been adopted ond the trustees consider that ne material uncertainties exist about
the charity's ability to continue for the foreseeable future.

A going concemn basis has been adopted and the Trustees consider that no material
unhcertainties exist about the charity's ability to continue for the foreseeable future. In
particular the Trustees have comsidered the potential impact of Covid-12 on the charity's
ability to fund its charitable programmes and fulfil its charitable purpose.

Assets and liabilities are initiclly recognised at historical cost or transaction value unless
otherwise stated in the relevant accounting policy netes,

The Trustees consider that there are no areas of estimation uncertainty in preparing these
accounts which give rise to a significant risk of an adjustment being required in a subsequent
period to the carmying value of the assets or liabilities.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Charity and
its subsidiary undertakings, Lord's Tavermers Enterprises Limited, Lady Taverners Limited, Lord's
Taverners Kit Recycling Limited and the Johnners Trust, on a line-by-line basis. The Lord's
Taverners is a corporate trustee of Johnrers Trust and exercises control over the appointment
of the cther trustees,

Charity Statement of Financial Activities

No separate statement of financial activities or income and expenditure account has been
presented for the charity alone as permitied by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, The
Charity had total incoming resources in the year of £4,484,000 (2020: £4, 690,000 including net
realised ond unredlised gains on investments) and total rescurces expended of £4,354,000
including net realised and unredlised losses on investrments [2020: £6,328,000). Net income for
the year was £130,000 (2020: net expenditure of £1,638,000).

Fund accounting

General funds are unrestricted funds which are available for use ot the discretion of the
Trustees in furtherance of the general objectives of the Charity and which have not been
designated for other purposes. They include the unresiricted reserves of Lord's Taverners Kii
Recycling Limited.

Designafed fund. The designated funds are unrestricted funds earmarked for specific
purposes by the Trustees. The Designated funds cover the activilies that are set out in the
Trustees Annual Report on page 24,

Johnners Trust. Unrestricted funds which are available for use at the discretion of the Trustees
of the Johnners Trust in furtherance of the general objectives of that Trust.

Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific restrictions
imposed by the donors or which have been raised by the charity for specific purposes.
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THE LORD'S TAVERNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 30 September 2021

1.

ACCOUNTING POLCIES (continved)

d)

f}

ihcome

Income is recognised when the charity has entittement {o the funds, any performance
conditions attached to he income has been met, it is probable that the income will be
received and the value of that income can be measured reliably. Specifically:

income from grants to the charity are recognised on the above basis. Where grants are
restricted to specific activities and the expenditure relating 10 those activities is expected to
occur in a future period then the grant (or a proportion thereof] is canied forward to next
year as part of Restricted Reserves. Government grants under the Coronavirus Job Retention
Scheme have been recognised in the period that the underlving payroll costs have been
incurred,

Legacies are recognised as income where the charity has been nofified of an entitlerment,
the value of that entitlement can be established with reasonable certainty, and its distribution
has been confirmed, usually by way of confirmation from the executor.

Donations are recognised when the charity is notified of them, conditions associated with the
donations have been met, and their receipt is certain,

Income and expenditure connected to fundraising events are reported separately and
recognised in the period to which ihe fundraising event related.

Annual subscriptions are treated as Income in the year to which they relate. Related gift aid
is recognised when a claim is made to Her Majesty's Revenue & Customs.

Investment income is accounted for when receivable and includes the related fax
recoverable.

Donations of gifls, services, and facilities

The charity receives donations of auction items and raffle prizes, many of which are unique
or not available on the open market. In addition, our event organisers, both nedionally and
regionally. negotiate supply agreements on the basis of the charity's status and receive use
of exclusive facilities not available to the general public. Similarly, our Charitable Programmes
team will negotiate venues to host ocur activities at reduced charity rates or on a free-use
basis. As such the Trustees consider it impractical to be able to ascribe g value to the various
doncted gifis, services and facilities.

Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised on an accruals basis and excludes recoverable VAT,

Costs of fundraising events comprise direct costs of the events, the costs of fundraising staff
and a proportien of attributable overhead costs,

Expenditure on charitable activities comprises all expenditure directly related to the objects
of the Charity and includes grants payable, which are recognised when the grant becomes
unconditional and has been fully funded by income. Charitable activities also include the
cosis of staff directly involved with charitable activities as well as a proportion of atfricutable
overhead cosls

Governance costs comprise expenditure relating to the governdnce and strategic
management of the Charity and its subsidiaries and include the costs of statutory
compliance, audit fees, Trustees' expenses, legal fees where these are related to strategic
issues and a proportion of overnead costs where these can be athiibuted to the governance
arrangementis of the group. Govermnance costs also include the costs of the meelings of
Trustees and other committee meetings. Governance costs are dllecated between
Fundraising and Charitable activities pro-rata to other non-charitable direct overheads,
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THE LORD'S TAVERNERS LIMITED

NGOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 30 September 2021

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Direct payroll and ofther costs that relate to charitable activities have been included in charitable
giving. Staff ond support costs relating to more than one activity have been allocated to activities on
a basis consistent with the use of the resources, including an estimate of the propoertion of time that is
spent on those activities. That apportionment is then used as a basis for allocating office overheads.
Costs incured in connection with the end of an employment relationship, outside of those centained
in the coniract, are recognised at the date employment ceases,

a}

h)

i)

1

k)

Tangible and intangible fixed dassets and hetitage assets

Gifted Arl, regarded as herifage assets, 15 held ot valuation where such valuations are
available. A formal valuation is being undertaken of these assets in 2022, They were last
valued in 1997,

Depreciafion has been provided to write off tangible fixed assets evenly over their expected
useful lives. Depreciation is also charged on heritage assets as these are believed to have
finite lives. The rates of depreciation applied to assets are:

Gitted arf - 2% per annum
Office equipment - 33.3% per annum
Trademarks - 10% per annum

The Trademarks had previously been amertised at 5% per annum, however most registrations
are now being renewed after ten years and so the policy has been changed an an additional
charge reflected in Note 11 1o reflect this.

Investments

Investmenits in subsidiary undertakings are held at cost less any impairment in value. Quoted
investments are valued at fair-value at the balance sheet date. Redlised and unrealised
gains and losses are included in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Stock
Stock is stated of the lower of cost and net redlisable value,

Leases

Rental costs on operating leases are charged to the statement of financiol activities over the
period of the lease, with the benefit of any payment-free periods being spread over the term
of the lease.

Pensions
The Lord's Tavemers contributes to the personal pension schemes of its employees. The
charge in the year represents contributions paid during the year.

Judgments and estimates
The key judgments and estimates used in the preparation of these financial statements are
as follows:

The depreciation of tangible fixed assets and amortisation of trademarks;

The split of support costs between charitable and fundraising activities;
Recoverabilty of debtors;

Provision for dilapidations that may be required at the end of the lease on the
Charity's main offices

There are no other key assumptions covering the fulure and other key sources of estimation
or uncertainty at the reporiing date that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liakilities within the next financial year.
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THE LORD'S TAVERNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 30 Sepltember 2021

2,

FUNDRAISING EVENT INCOME

Ticket sales to events
Auctions
Raffles

External support [includes restricted income of £7,000, 2020: £134,000)

Other fundraising activities
Central fundraising

Regional fundraising
Johnners Trust

DONATIONS ~ 2021

Minibus programme

Cricket based programmes

Wheelchair and disability sports

Grants received under Coronavirys Job
Retenticn Scheme

Other

Donations - 2020

Minibus programime

Cricket based programmes

Wheelchair and disability sports

Grants recelved under Coronavirus Job
Retention Scheme

Other

INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME

Bank interest and investment income:

40

20 2020
£'000 £'000
11 244
172 172
11 32
303 316
23 21
620 785
245 1.210
" 48
885 2,043
Total
Unrestricted Restricted 202
£'000 £000 £000
5 5
1,110 1,110
- 18 18
102 - 102
1,458 - 1,458
1,560 1,133 2,693
Total
Unrestricted Restricted 2020
£'000 £'000 £000
- 444 444
- 479 479
- 25 25
0 - 70
1,015 - 1,015
1,085 1,148 2,233
2021 2020
£000 £000
122 152




THE LORD'S TAVERNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 30 September 2021

5, COSTS OF FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES - 2021

Total
Central Regional 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000
Direct costs of events 229 164 393
Fundraising staff cosis 757 - 757
Premises costs 122 - 122
Depreciation 44 - 44
Investment management fees 26 - 26
Other overhead costs 600 - 400
1,778 164 1,942
Costs of Fundraising Aclivities - 2020
Central Regional 2020
£000 £'000 £'000
Direct costs of evenls 448 693 1141
Fundraising staff costs 783 - 783
Premises cosfs 133 - 133
Depreciation 34 - 34
investment management fees 32 - 32
Other overhead costs 473 - 473
1,903 493 2,596
6. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES - 2021 Direct Staff and Total
charitable support 2021
expenditure costs
£'000 £000 £'000
Cricket based programmes 793 1,474 2,267
Minibuses {3) 40 37
wheelchair and disability sports 29 80 109
Johnners Trust 20 - 20
839 1,594 2,433
Charitable Activities - 2020 Direct Staff and Total
charitable supporf 2020
expendifure cosis
£'000 £'0600 £000
Cricket based programmes 1,015 1.321 2,334
Minibuses 836 120 254
Wheelchair and disability sporfs 154 160 314
Johnners Trust 14 - 14
2019 1,601 3,620
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THE LORD’S TAVERNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 30 Seplember 2021

6.

CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES - Continued

Staff and support costs above, and premises costs included in note 5, include £197,124 {2020
£197,735) rent expense under operating leases in respect of premises. Direct charitable expenditure
includes £43,000 {2020 £31,745) rent expense under operating lecses in respect of premises. The

amounts paid in the yvear for rent were £279,178 (2020 £278,673).

Direct charitable expenditure akove includes grants in relafion 1o 27 individuals totaling £17,355
{2020 30 individuals totaling £26,160) and 4 organisations totaling £95,115 [2020: 43 organisations

totaling £1,07%,313).
GOVERNANCE COSTS

Govemance costs included in Suppor Costs comprise (for infermation):

2021

£'000
Auditor's fees - for audit 25
Meetings, AGM and election costs 55
Legal and professional fees 157
Attributable staff time 257
494

269

The auditors also received fees for other services unconnected with Governance amounting to

£1,750 (2020 - Nil} during the pericd.

STAFF COSTS 2021 2020
£'000 £000
Salaries and related cosls 1,390 1,444
Social security costs 141 157
Olher pension cosls [nole 1{i)) 80 84
1,611 1,687

The following employees received more than £60,000 [excluding National Insurance and benefits) in

the financial vear:

£130,000 1o £140,000 =
£110,000 to £120,000 1
£100,000 to £110,600 1
£80,000 to £90,000 ]
£70,000 1o £80,000 -

The remuneration of the Senior Leadership Team for the year including national insurance, pension
and other benefits was £500,218 [2020: £395043). Non-statutory payments were made in

connection with the departure of employees totaling £54,083 in the year {2020: £4,500).

The average number of staff employed during the year [full time and part time) was:

Fundiraising, regional support and administration 24 27
Charitable Giving Q 9
Governance and strategy 2 2

35 38

The Charity employed 32 (2020: 34) full time equivalent employees during the year
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THE LORD'S TAVERNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 30 September 2021

8. STAFF COSTS Continved
The Charity has approximately 40 active regional committees organising events and raising
money to support our charitable causes. Each of these committees comprises up to 10
individuals, all volunteers, who are supported by their own networks of supporters. No costs are
reflected in these financial statements in respect of the coniribution of unpaid volunteers,
9. TRUSTEES REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

Costs refating to Trustees' meetings and fravel costs were ENil {2020: £43. one Trustee)

10. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS Office
furniture,
tittings and

Gifled art Equipment Total
Group and charity £'000 £'000 £000
Cost or valuation
At 30 September 2020 51 624 675
Additions in the Year - 15 15
Disposals in the Year - (55} (53]
At 30 September 2021 5 584 635
Depreciation
At 30 September 2020 21 464 485
Charge for the Year 1 &7 68
Disposals in the Year - {55) (55
At 30 September 2021 22 474 498
Net Book Value
At 30 September 2021 29 108 137
At 30 September 2020 30 160 190

11. INTANGIBLE FEXED ASSETS
Trademarks

Group and charlty £'000
Cost or valuation
At 30 September 2020 &9
Additions in the Year 12
A1 30 September 2021 8l
Depreciation
At 30 September 2020 20
Charge for the year 8
Additional provision 22
At 30 September 2021 50
Net Book Value
At 30 September 2021 31
At 30 September 2020 49
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THE LORD'S TAVERNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)

For the year ended 30 September 2021

12, SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS AND OTHER INVESTMENTS
Subsidiary vndertakings
Active Subsidiarlies
The Charity is a corporate trustee and member of the Johnners Trust {formerly the Brian Johnsion
Memorial Trust} company number 03004117, Charity number 1045944 and has the power 1o appoint

the other trustees. The financial statements, which will be filed with the Regisirar of Companies and
the Charity Commission, are summarised below,

Johnners Trust
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Income 3 55
Expenditure (2n {42)
Net income for the year {18} 13
Funds brought forward 163 150
Funds camed forward and net assels 145 163

Inactive Subsidiaries

The Charity owns 100% of the issued share capital of Lord’s Taverners Enterprises limited (company
no. 03402725) and Lady Taverners Limited {Company no. 07535181), both companies are registered
in England and Wales, were dormant throughout the period and had net assets of £2 and £)
respectively. The Charily, through its abllity to appoint Trustees, controls Lerd's Taverners Kit Recycling
Limited {Company no. 7593015, Charity no. 11474621) with net assets of £551 {2020 £551)

Other Investments

The investment portfolic of the Charity was managed during the financial year by Close Asset
Management Limited. The movement in investments for the year was as follows:

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Investments
Opening balance 5,165 6,236
Acquisitions ot cost 668 1,593
Disposals at cost (Proceeds £1,824,000, 2020 - £2,511,000, Profit (1.565) (2,496}
on disposal £25%,000, 2020 - £15,000)
Unredalised profit (loss) for the vear 181 {168}
Closing balance 4,449 5,165
Investment Cash
Opening balkance 42 256
Transfer to Lord's Taverners bank account {750} {1.250)
Acquisitions at cost {648) {1.523)
Proceeds on disposal 1,824 25711
Other cash movements 94 118
Closing balance 544 42
Total Investments ot Market Yalue at 30 September 2021 4,993 5,207

Totadl Investments ot Cost at 30 September 2021 4,084 4,479
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)

For the year ended 30 September 2021

12.

13,

14.

15.

SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS AND OTHER INVESTMENTS (continued)

Represented by:

Fixed Income Securities

UK Equities

Overseas Equities
Alternative and Property Investments

Cash

STOCK

Merchandise for Resale

DEBTORS

Trade Debtors

Debtors in respect of regions
Taxes recoverable

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

CREDITORS: amounts falling dve
within one year

Creditors related to charitable activities
Creditors in respect of regions

Other creditors

Taxation and social security

Accruals and deferred income

Owed to subsidiary company

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
1,492 2,210
655 750
1,518 1.558
784 647
544 42
4,993 5,207
Group Charity
2021 2020 20 2020
£'000 £000 £°000 £'000
24 27 24 27
Group Chaority
2021 2020 2021 2020
£ £ £ £
&0 17 4G 117
17 13 17 13
37 39 37 39
195 82 195 82
149 190 149 190
458 441 458 44]
Group Charity
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
433 999 430 921
71 38 71 38
12 178 112 178
a5 43 35 43
35 161 315 161
- - 20 21
966 1.41%9 283 1,432

Accrudls and defered income includes £82,000 {2020: £2,000] of defered income. The 2020 deferred
income was released during the year ended 30 September 2021,

At 30 September 2020 there was £811,000 {30 September 2019, £778,000) payable in respect of
grants. During the year grants of £10%9,000 (2020: £1,074,000) were awarded ang £838,000 [2020:
£1,041,000) were paid, teaving a grants payable balance af 30 September 2021 of £82,000 {2020:

£811,000,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the vear ended 30 September 2021

Téa

I6b

FUNDS
30 Septembrer 2021

Group
Unreskricled funds
General

Johnners Trust

Designated funds (Note 18]
Total unrestricted funds

Restricted funds (see Note 17)
Crickef Programmes:
Wickelz
Super 1%
Table Cricket
Other
Disgbility Equipment
Minibuses
Ployspaces / sensory rooms
wheelchairs / Wheelchaoir
sports

Total restricted funds

Total funds

FUNDS
30 September 2020

Group
Unrestricied funds
General
Johnners Trust

Designaied funds (Nole 18}
Tolal unresiricted funds

Restiicted funds (see Note 17)
Cricket Programmes:
Wwickelz
Super is
Table Crickef
Oiher
Disabiity Equipment
Minibuses
Playspaces / sensory rooms
Wheelchairs / Wheelchaoir
spOrts

Total restricted funds

Totol funds

Incoming Qutgeing
resources f net resources f net Balance at 30
Balance at 1 investment investment September
October 2020 gains losses Transfers 202
£'000 £°000 £000 £'000 £000
3,609 3343 {3.359) 3,593
163 3 {21} 145
3772 3,346 (3.380) 3,738
1,623 - (74} 1,549
5.395 3.346 {3,454 5,287
- 141 {1 30
61 886 {742) 205
- 80 {4%) 40
3 10 (Rlv;] 3
17 3 - 22
18 (18} -
gl 1,140 (921} 300
5,476 4,486 (4,375} 5,587
incoming Quigaing
resources / nel resources / nef Bolance af 30
Bolance at 1 invesiment investment Seplember
October 2019 gains losses fransfers 2020
£'000 £000 £°000 £'000 £'000
3.501 3,470 {4.6901 1.337 3,609
150 55 {42} : 163
3,651 3,525 f4,741) 1,337 3,772
3,430 {470} {1,337} 1,623
7.08) 3.525 {5,211) 5395
15 145 {i80) 2
- 545 {484) 61
45 {435)
14 {1 3
5 444 f432) 17
. 23 {23 =
3 {3}
20 1.219 {1,158} 81
7,101 4,744 16,369}

5474
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16c  Group net assets between funds

30 September 2021 Unrestricted Funds Resticted
General Designated Funds Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets 137 - - 137
Intangible fixed assets 31 - - 31
Investments 3.652 1,341 - 4,993
Current Assets 884 208 300 1,392
Current Liabilities (966) - - (66
3,738 1,549 300 5,587
16d  Group net assets between funds
30 Seplember 2020 Unrestricted Funds Reshicled
General  Designuled Funds Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets 190 s - 190
Intangible fixed assets 49 - - 49
Investments 3.584 1,623 - 5,207
Current Assefs 1,348 - 81 1,449
Current Liabilities (1.419) - - (1.419}
3.772 1,623 81 5476

17.  RESTRICTED FUNDS$

The restricted funds reported within the financial statements represent the consolidation of o numiser of
individual funds that relate to specific charitable programmes and may be further restricted either by
region or specific activity. The following indicate the sources of restricted income across each ot the
programme categorisations.

Cricket programmes

Wicketz is a specific programme delivering weekly year-round cricket coaching to young people in
areas of high deprivation, alongside other workshops to develop life skills and improve the well being
of participants. We would like to thank for their support of this specific pregramme:

Royal Bank of Canada Jersey, Hugh Fraser Foundation, The Waierloo Foundation, Sussex
PCC, Bedfordshire PCC, Foxley Kingham, Keith Bradshaw, Pen Trust, Trafford Housing Trigst,
Cleveland PCC, the 29t May 1941 Trust, Energise Me, and those individuals who undertook
cross country and fasting challenges on behalf of the programme.

Table Cricket is ¢ game designed around cricket, played on a table tennis table, to engage
individuals with bath physical and leaming disabilities in sport and to build teamwork and self-
confidence. We would like 1o thank for their support of this specific programme:

Pen Trust, Ford Motor Company.
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17.

18 a

RESTRICTED FUNDS (continued)

Super 1s provides year-round weekly cricket sessions for young people with a disability to build social
and sporting skills and thus enhance their confidence. We would like to thank for their support of this
specific programme;

The England and Wales Cricket Trust and the ECB, Sport England, Berkeley Foundation, Kent
Community Foundation, St Johns Foundation, Hawthormne Trust, Gannochy Trust, Sovereign
Health Care, Gerald Miclem Trust, Houghton Trust, and the many individuals, including

members of the England Disability cricket squad, who raised funds for the programme
through the Hundred and the Hub to Hub challenges.,

Other is primarily Kit recycling, whersby new and used kit is collected, scrfed, and despatched te
participants in the UK and daround the world to enable local people to participate in sport. We would
like to thank for their support of this specific programme:

Ellem Foundation
Bisability Programmes

Minibuses are provided to special needs schools to enable their pupils to participate in activities
outside of the school premises. As well as the beneficiary schools who provide a donation towards
the cost of their minibus. we would like to thank the following supporters of individual minibuses:

Waitrose, Laser Electrcial

Wheelchairs are provided to individuals and fo clubs seeking to acauire adapted sports wheelchairs
for use by young people. Parficipants provide ¢ donation towards the cost of the wheelchair.

Sensory Rooms and Play spaces provide specially adapted equipment to, primarily special needs
schools, for the benefit of pupils with a learning or physical disabllity. We would like tc thank the
following supporters of specific projects;

Ramplin Trust

DESIGNATED FUNDS - 2021

Balance at 1 Expenditure Transfer to Balance at 30

October 2020 unrestricted September
reserves 201
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Table Cricket Fund 543 (4} - 539
Super 15 Fund 100 - - 100
Worcester Disability Centre 500 - - 500
Fund
Programme Evaluation Fund 200 - - 200
Fields in Trust Fund 280 [70) - 210

1,623 (74} 1,549
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18a

18b

19.

DESIGNATED FUNDS - 2021 - confinuved
The Designated Funds comprise the foliowing:

Table Cricket Fund - amounts set aside to fund the redesign of table cricket equipment, including
digital support materials, to ensure that the game is more robust and appeals 1o young participants.
The fund dlso dllows for the replenishment of existing ecquicment currently with beneficiary
organisations. The Trustees expect the mdjority of this to be expended in the year ending 30
Septemier 2022,

Super 15 Fund - this was established in order to provide additional working capital to the Super s
programme in advonce of the multi-year partnership with the Englond and Wales Cricket Board, This
has been largely drawn down, with the balaonce reflecting lower costs in the latter part of the financial
year due 1o the impact of Covid 19 on programme delivery. This fund will be utilised during the year
ending 30 Seplember 2022,

Worcester National Disability Centre — funds set aside to support the University of Worcester and the
England ond Wales Cricket Board in the construction of a new dedicated disability cricket cenire
adjacent to the university. Planning permission has now been granted and the grant is expected to
be made during 2022,

Programme Evaluation Fund - These funds have been designated to fund a full independent review
of our programmes in 2022 / 2023, and to implement recommendcations thai may arise from such a
review.

Fields in Trust Fund — these funds have been set aside to fund a five year partnership through to 2025
with Fields in Trust — a longstanding charity partner - to finance the protection of green spaces for
community support.

DESIGNATED FUNDS - 2020
Batance Transferto Expenditure Transferto  Balance af
af 1 New unrestricted 30

Qclober funds reserves  Seplember

2019 2020

£'000 £000 £900 £'000 £'000
Strategic Development Fund 737 - - (737) -
Special Projects Fund 1.950 {1,350} - {600) -
Table Cricket Fund 543 - - - 543
Super isFund - 500 {400) - 100
Worcester Disability Cenfre - 500 - - 500

Fund

Programme Evaluation Fund 200 - - - 200
Fields in Trust Fund - 350 {70} - 280
3,430 - {470) {1,337} 1,623

TAXATION

As the Lord's Tavemers Limited is a registered charity il is entitled to the exemptions from corporation
tax afforded by the relevant sections of the Corporation Tax Act 2011 so far as its income and gains

are applied for charitable purposes.
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For the year ended 30 September 2021

20.

21,

22.

COMMITMENTS

The lease in respect of the main offices at 90 Chancery Lane expires in 2024, The total payable
between 30 September 2021 and the end of the lease is £507,000.

A ten-year lease for a warehouse was entered into in relation to kit recycling warehouse in Ipswich in
November 2021, The rent due under this lease is £43,000 per annum and there is a break exercisable
on the sixth anniversary, the commitment to that date being £1792,000. The Charity had no other
material commitments as at 30 September 2021 which are not subject to fundraising in future periods.

The above operating lease commitments can also be summarized as follows:

201 2020

£000 £000

Payable in less than one year 279 279
Payable in 2- 5 yvears 407 725
Payable over 5 years = 6
686 1,010

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
As at 30 September 2021 the Charity was owed £20.330 by the Johnners Trust {2020: due from the Trust
£20,330). During the finoncial year the Charity made a grant to the Trust of ENil {2020: £Nil),

CONSTITUTION

The Lord's Taverners Limited is o company limited by guarantee with approximately 3,300 members
{2020: 3,480 members). The maximum liakility on winding up for each member is £1.
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23 Consolidated Stalement of Financial Activities for the year ended~ 30 Seplember 2020

Reproduced from the 2020 Annudal report fo provide comparative information to the

staterment on page 34,

Note

Income

Income and endowments from:
Fundraising events 2

Voluniary income
Donations 3
Legacies
Subscripfions and entrance fees
Investment and other income 4
Total Income
Expendiiure

Raising funds
Fundraising activiiies 5

Charitable activities
Disadvantaged and Disabled Cricket
Minibuses

Disabilily and Specicl Needs
Johnners Trust

Total expenditure
Net expenditure before profits on Investments

Net realised and unrealised {losses] gains on
investments

Net expenditure for the year
inter fund transfer
Net movement in funds for the year

Balances brought forward at 1 Oclober

Balances carried forward ot 30 September 16
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Unrestricted
Funds
General  Deslgnated
£000 £'000
1,872
1.085 -
£ _
311
152 -
3,525
2,594
1,165 470
524 -
289 -
14 -
1,992 470
4,588 470
11,043) {470)
[153)
{1,214) {470)
1,337 {1.,337)
121 {1,807
3,651 3.430
3.772 1,623

Restricted Total
tunds 2020
£°000 £'000

71 2,043
1,148 2,233
- 5

- 3an

. 152
1.219 4,744
2,596

701 2,336
432 956
25 314

. 14
1,158 3,620
1,158 6,216
é1 (1,472
{153}

41 {1.625)

61 {1,625)
20 7,101

8 5476




